Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Tatanet Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.  Wehave audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tatanet Services Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2020, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter
4. Wedraw your attention to

(a) Note 43 to the financial statements regarding composite scheme of arrangement between
the Company, Nelco Limited and Nelco Network Products Limited which was approved by
the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) vide its order dated November 2, 2018 (the
“Scheme”). As per the NCLT Order, the Company intimated the Registrar of the Companies
(“RoC”) about the approval of the Scheme by NCLT, stating that Department of
Telecommunications (“DoT”) approval was not yet obtained. The RoC records were,
however, updated to reflect the Scheme as effective and the Company as “amalgamated”
with Nelco Limited. Based on legal advice, the Company has approached NCLT to direct
the RoC to amend their records to reinstate the Company to its earlier status and cancel the
effect of the Scheme with immediate effect. The decision of NCLT is awaited. Pending
necessary approvals, the Scheme has not been considered effective.
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(b) Note 41 to the financial statements regarding the input tax credit balances under the
Cenvat/Service tax/Sales tax considered fully recoverable by the management and no

provision made against the same in the books based on the legal advice obtained by the
Company,

(c) Note 42 to the financial statements, which describes the management's assessment of the
impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the
Company. The management believes that no adjustments are required in the financial
statements as it does not impact the current financial year, however, in view of the various
preventive measures taken (such as complete lock-down, travel restrictions ete.) and highly
uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent
periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key audit matters

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Revenue recognition related to specific

pricing arrangements with customers Our audit procedures in relation io revenue

(Refer notes 2.11 and 3(a) to the Financial recognition included;

Statements)  Understanding and evaluating the design and
testing the operating effectiveness of key

The Company recognises revenue from controls over revenue recognition;

Bandwidth Services over the period of . Assessing the appropriateness of the accounting

performance of the services. The prices charged
are customer specific and the contracts with
customers involve multiple performance
obligations by the Company and other group
companies.

In view of involvement of multiple group
companies and non-standard prices, the
management exercises judgement to determine
an appropriate standalone selling price for
performance obligation relating to the
Company for the purpose of recognition of
revenue. The transaction price to each
performance obligation is allocated on the basis
of the relative standalone selling price of each
distinct goods or service promised in the
contract.

policies applied by the company in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

* Testing of contracts with customers on a sample
basis to assess the contractual terms impacting
identification of performance obligations and
determination of the fair value of consideration
relating to the performance obligation;

» Testing the timing of fulfilment of performance
obligations and recognition of revenue based on
agreed pricing;

e Performing tests related to non-standard
manual journal entries related to revenue.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did
not note any significant exceptions regarding
recognition of revenue in relation to specific pricing
arrangements with customers.
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We considered this to be a Key Audit Matter due
to involvement of significant management
judgement in determination of performance
obligations, the customer contracts being

complex and the pricing terms being non-
standard.

Assessment of Contingent liabilities and
provisions for litigations

(Refer notes 2.17 and 3(e) to the Financial
Statements)

As at March 31, 2020, the Company disclosed
Contingent liabilities (to the extent not
provided for) of Rs. 4,004 lakhs in respect of
certain tax and other litigations.

The Company faces challenges from tax
authorities during tax assessment proceedings
and from certain business service providers,
during the normal course of business. There is a
high level of management judgement required
in estimating the probable outflow of economic
resources and the level of provisioning and the
disclosures required. The management’s
assessment is supported by advice from
independent tax and legal consultants obtained
by the management.

We focused on this area as the outcome of the
litigations is uncertain and the positions taken
by the management are based on the
application of material judgement, advice from
tax/legal consultants and interpretation of law.
The ultimate outcome of the litigations could be
different from the positions taken by the
management and may significantly impact the
Company’s financial position.

First-time Adoption of Ind AS 116 —
Leases

(Refer notes 2.14 and 3(f) to the Financial
Statements)

Our audit procedures included the following:

e Understanding and evaluating processes and
controls designed and implemented by the
management for assessment of litigations and
testing their operating effectiveness;

e Obtaining the list of taxation and other litigation
matters, inspecting the supporting evidence and
critically assessing management’s evaluation
through discussions with management on both
the probability of outcome and the magnitude of
potential outflow of economic resources;

» Reading recent orders received from the tax
authorities and other communication from the
business service providers, and the Company'’s
responses to such communications to assess the
status of the litigations;

o Where relevant, reading most recent advice
obtained by management from independent
tax/legal consultants and evaluating the
grounds presented therein;

e FEvaluating independence, objectivity and
competence of the management's tax/legal
consultants;

e Obtaining direct confirmations from lawyers,
where considered relevant;

e Understanding the current status of the tax
assessments/ litigations;

e Together with auditors’ tax experts, evaluating
the management assessment of estimated
potential tax exposures considering the
applicable provisions of direct and indirect tax
laws.

We did not identify any material exceptions as a
result of above procedures.

Our audit procedures included the following:
e Understanding of the process followed by the
management and testing of the design and
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‘Ind AS 116 — Leases’ becomes effective from

reporting periods beginning April 1, 2019. Ind
AS 116 introduces a new lease accounting
model, where lessees are required to recognise
a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease liability
arising from a lease on it’s balance sheet.

The Company applied Ind AS 116 on April 1,
2019 using the modified retrospective approach
and comparative information is not restated.
The application of the new standard gives rise
to a right of use asset of Rs 519 lakhs and a
corresponding increase in lease liabilities of Rs
551 lakhs as at March 31, 2020.

We considered the first time application of Ind
AS 116 as a key audit matter due to the material
nature of those leases and the significance of the
management’s judgements in determining the
consideration of contract excluded/covered
under the lease standards, lease term, technical
and financial assumptions determined to assess
the assets covered under Ind AS 116.

Other Information

6.

operating effectiveness of key controls around
accounting for leases.

* Understanding the Companys process in
identifying lease contracts, or contracts which
contained leases:

¢ Reviewing the accounting policy adopted by the
Company and the options chosen on transition
from Ind AS 17 to Ind AS 116.

¢ Evaluating a sample of contracts to assess
whether leases have been appropriately
identified;

¢ Obtaining the Companys quantification of
Right Of Use assets and lease liabilities. For a
sample of leases, agreeing the inputs used for
determining assets and liabilities related to
lease contracts with underlying contractual
data;

* Assessing the management assumptions,
specifically on the assumptions underlying
determination of the discount rates and
assessment of renewal options;

* Reperforming the calculation on sample basis
to test the accuracy of Ind AS 116 adjustment;

e Assessing the completeness and
appropriateness of disclosures given in the
financial statements as per the requirement of
Ind AS 116;

Based on the above procedures performed, we did
not note any significant exceptions in the
quantification of impact and the adjustments and
disclosures made on first time adoption of Ind AS
116.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give atrue and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also;

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls;

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern;

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

12. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

13. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

14. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”;

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements — Refer Note 34 to the financial statements;
ii.  The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31,
2020 for which there were no material foreseeable losses:
iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2020;

iv.  The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

15. The Company does not have any employees and according requirements for managerial
remuneration in accordance provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N / N500016

o)

Nehal Upadhayay
Mumbai Partner
May 16, 2020 Membership Number: 115872

UDIN:20115872AAAACC4237
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tatanet

Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. Acompany's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mumbai Partner
May 16, 2020 Membership Number: 115872
UDIN:20115872AAAACC4237
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i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year and
no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note 4(a) on Property, plant and
equipment to the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said Order are
not applicable to the Company.

ii. The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of
the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

2 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75
and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products.We have broadly
reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the preseribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of income tax though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including goods and service tax and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

Further, for the period March 1, 2020 to March 31, 2020, the company is yet to pay Goods and Service
Tax and file Form GSTR3B, for which the timeline is June 24, 2020 as per the Notification No. 31/2020
dated April 3, 2020 on fulfillment of conditions specified therein.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no dues of income-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and goods and service tax which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of value added tax as at
March 31, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Period to which the | Forum where the
(Rs. In lakhs) * | amount relates dispute is pending

The Maharashtra Value | Value Added tax 3,319 | 2006-07,2007-08, | Sales Tax Tribunal

Added Tax Act, 2002 including interest 2009-10, 2010-11

The Maharashtra Value | Value Added tax 517 2008-09 High Court

Added Tax Act, 2002 including interest

* Net of amounls paid under protest or otherwise.
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viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government. Further the company has not issued any debentures as at  the
balance sheet date.

ix. In our opinion, and according to the information term loans have been applied for the purposes for

which they were obtained. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer, further
public offer (including debt instruments).

X. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have
we been informed of any such case by the Management.

xi. The Company does not have any employees and according requirements for managerial remuneration
in accordance provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Aet are not applicable to the
Company.

Xil. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the

provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the finaneial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit
Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause 3(xiii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clanse 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

2 b

Nehal Upadhayay
Mumbai Partner
May 16, 2020 Membership Number: 115872

UDIN:20115872AAAACC4237



Tatanet Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2029
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4(a) 3,436 2,021
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4(a) 281 294
(c) Right-of-use assets 4(b) 519 -
(d) Intangible assets 4(3) 178 163
(e) Financial assets
{i) Investments S S 5
{ii) Other financial assets 12(a) 17 16
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 86 7
(g) Income tax assets (net) 7 1,190 816
(h) Other non-current assets 8 15 5
Total non-current assets 5,727 3,391
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 3,560 2,437
{ii) Cash & cash equivalents 10 750 283
(iii) Loans 11 i 53
(iv) Other financial assets 12(b) 383 252
(k) Other current assets 14 371 179
Total current assets 5,139 3,204
TOTAL ASSETS 10,866 6,595
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQuUITY
(a) Equity share capital 15 490 490
(b) Other equity
Reserve and surplus 16 1,561 997
Qther reserve 16 (a) 1 1
Total equity 2,052 1,488
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(3} Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 17(a) 141 282
(ii) Lease liabilities 4(b) 446 .
Total non-current liabilities 587 282
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17(b) 1,270 547
(i) Trade payables 18
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises = =
(b) total outstanding dues other than (i) (a) above 2,389 1,793
(iii) Lease liabilities 4(b) 105 -
(iv) Other financial liabilities 19 1,376 517
(b) Contract liabilities 13 2,668 1,867
{c) Other current liabilities 20 419 101
Total current fiabilities 8,227 4,82%
Total liabilities 8,814 5,107
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,866 6,595

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
for Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

q Registration Number : 012754N/N500016
Nehal Upadmva%

Partner
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Date : May 16, 2020
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Tatanet Services Limited
statement of Profiv and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

(lsA in Lakhs})
==

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year yrwled
pMaren 31, 2020 March 31, 2012
Revenue from operations 21 11,647 9,827
Other income 22 45 n
Tatal revenug 11,662 9,898
EXPRNSES
(@) Purchases of sipuk-in-irade g ;
(b} Operating cupenies 23 9, 588 867
(£) Winanee cosis 24 213 188
(d) Bepreciation and amortisation gxpense F13 598 429
| (e} Other expensas % 395 464
Total expenses 10,899 9,245
#rofit before tax 763 g83
Income tax sapensc
« Current tax 36la) 214 194
- Deferred tax 36{a) (15) (9}
199 185
Profit after tax 564 468
Other cormprERENZIVE INCOMB
Itgms that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
~Changes In fair value of FYOC! equity instruments " .
- Income tax relating w the sbove . ¢
Total gther comprehensive income : «
Total comprehensive income for the year 564 168
Earninge per equity share { Face Value Rs 10/- per share )( Basic and Diluted) 33 1151 454

“figures are below rounding uff nerm adopred by the cumpany.
The sbove statement of profit and loss should be read in canjunction with the ascempanying notes

or Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP FOF @NT ON BENAN 8T 1Ny ¥oard of Directors
Plrm Registration NumBgr : 012784N/NB00016 Tatanet Services Limited
1
s el B

CIN UGZ7120MH1087PLL!
£m Upagnaya
’_w,_an__.‘u—-v*%‘b' N

Partner
P.J. Noth - Director \)e}»"\
DIN-05118177 L

Memberahip
%

#_ R Bhinge- Chairman
DI OOOAGSSY

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 16, 2020 Date - May 16, 2020



Tatanet Services Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year endéd Mareh 31, 1020

{ Rs I Lykhe
Fartiulara Year endad Year ended
Maren 31, 2020 March 34, 2019
A, CASH FLOWS FROM UPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 763 853
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and smartisation 598 418
Finance costs 33 185
Interest inzome (1 (34)
Untealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 1 (7)
Unrealised market to market (gain) / loss on forward centraste (8)
Bad debrs/ sundry balanses written off v &
provision for doubtful debts {net off write back) 42 (17)
Sundry belaress and dapasite wrirtan hack g (371
Operating protit nators working o aphal changea 3,227 1,176
working capital adjustments :
- (Increase) in v ade receivables (1,165) (09)
< {Incrmase) in losna (22) (42!
+ (Increase) / Desreuss 1 othar non current assets {10) “
« (increase) ather current finansial sssate 1124) (1)
- (Ingrease) in uther axscts (1921 (81)
- Increse In contrast liakilives 01 LE67
+ [Becrease) / 1A&kaS24 (n BTNBT currant iabiliiey 18 (1.687)
» Increase in trode payapIes _ 476 5 |
Cach generated from 0DErauENy 1,930 1,138
Taxes paid (net of refunds) (568 {128)
Net cash generated {rum vperating activities (A) L3 807
B, GASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase for proparty, plant and equipment / Intangible sssety (1,086) 14591
Initerest received 1 34
Bank balances not considered as ¢ash and cash equivalents-Depasits placed (1} {16
Net cash {used In) Investing activities (1,086) (aa1)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AGTIVITIES
prazaade lrom borrowings 1,833 1,188
Repayments of barrowings (3,973 (1,422}
Principal payment of lease llabllivies (50) -
Interest pavment of lease hiabilitics {56) .
Finance co3t pald (205) (185}
et easn nnow genvosied frum/lused in) Angnting activitioc ’ 1447)
Net increase/(docrease) in cash ang cash equivalents {ArD€) 243 65
Cash and cosh equivaients 3t tha beginning of the vear L] 28
Cagh and cash equivalents at the ey of the year (retec note 4 belaw) 526 783
Nore
W]kms a3 per above compnies af tha fallowing
Brrticulars Year ended Vaar ended W
march §1, 2070 Mareh 31, 2009
{a)Balances witn banks .-

Ir current accouNts 650 0
(b)Cheques on hand 0 43
(c)Bank overdraft (224) 2
Total - Cash and cash -ﬂgmlnm.s as per statement of cash flows 526 283

2) The Cach Flow Statement has been prepared under the Wndirest Methad® 2t zat sut in IND AS « 7 “Statement of Cash Flows".

The sbove statement of cash flows shauld be reod in eonjunction with the acCOMPANVINE NOLEY.

Far Price Wateriouse Lnartered accountants LLP
an}\ Registration Number ; 012754N/NS00016

Nehal Upadhayay
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Date : May 16, 2020

for ang on behalt of the Boarg of Directors of

Tatanst Services Lmitad
(‘?’\/\

Mk OEYOWRMALNGRTO N LR]

l:
1
n
P.J, Nath - Director

DIN-05118177 % 5

Place : Mumbai
Date - May 16, 2020

R. R. Bhinge- Chairman
DIN- 00036557




Tatanet Services Limited

statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equity share capital

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
As at April 1, 2018 490
Change in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2019 490
Change in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2020 490

B. Other Equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus Other Reserves
Particulars i earnings FVOCH Total
Equity instrument
As at April 1, 2018 529 1 530
Profit for the year 468 - 468
Other comprehensive income for the year - g =
As at March 31, 2019 997 1 398
Profit for the year 564 - 564
Other comprehensive income for the year - * =
As at March 31, 2020 1,561 1 1,562

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the company

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunctio

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 012754N/N500016

(e

Nehal Ugadhayay
Partner
Membership No.115872

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 16, 2020

n with the accompanying Notes

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tatanet Services Limited
CIN- U67120MH1987PLC044351

R. R. Bhinge- Chairman
DIN- 00036557

P.J. Nath - Director
DIN-05118177

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 16, 2020




Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate Information

Tatanet Services Limited (herein after referred to as “TNSL") is a 100% subsidiary of Nelco Limited (a
subsidiary of Tata Power Company Limited)

TNSL is in the business of providing domestic satellite communication services to closed user group (CUG)
networks via Satellite System on non-exclusive basis within the territorial boundary of India under the VSAT
License granted by Department of Telecommunications (D.O.T.), Government of India.

TNSL provides service through its central hubs located at Mahape & Dehradun. TNSLalso provides Internet
Services under the PAN India ISP License.

2. Summary of Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial

statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

a. Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b. Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities that is measured at fair value.
c¢. New and amended Standards adopted by theCompany

The company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing April 1, 2019:

-Ind AS 116, Leases,
- Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments — Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes,

- Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement- Amendment to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits,
- Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes,

- Amendment to Ind AS 23, Borrowing costs.

The company had to change its accounting policies following the adoption of Ind AS 116. This is disclosed in note
32. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

2.2. a. Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
or construction, including duties and non-refundable taxes and expenses directly related to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for making them operational for their intended use. Subsequent
expenditure are added to existing assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate

asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit
and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.




Tatanet Services Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

b. Capital work-in-progress

Projects under which property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use are carried at
cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

¢. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their estimated residual
value, over their estimated useful lives.

The useful lives and residual values are as prescribed under schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013 except for the
following type of assets where useful life is considered as per management estimate, based on technical advice,
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, replacements generally required from the point of view of operational effectiveness.

Type of Assets Useful Life
Plant & Machinery

RF and Baseband 10-12 years
Networking devices 6 years
VSAT Antenna and parts 15 years
Office Equipment

Computer Hardware 3 Years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in the statement of profit and loss within Other Income / Other Expenses.

2.3 Intangible assets
Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation

and accumulated impairment, if any. The Company amortises intangible assets using straight line method over
the following periods.

License Fees — VSAT : Over the license period of 20 years
License Fees — ISP : Over the license period of 15 years
Testing software :5years

2.4 Impairment of non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.5 Investments and other financial assets
a. Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the
statement of profit and loss), and
- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit and loss or
other comprehenswe income. For Investment in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company
has made gesbteelection at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair




Tatanet Services Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended Mzarch 31, 2020

value through other comprehensive income.

b. Measurement

Atinitial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Equity Instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Company's right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/
(losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

c. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, except for specifically identified cases, Company follows a
simplified approach permitted by the IND AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

d. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where
the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of
the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

e. Income Recognition

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

f. Dividend
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdraft. Bank overdraft are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Trade receivable

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Financial Liabilities
a. Classification
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities.

b. Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case of financial liability
not at fair value through statement of profit or loss), that are directly attributable to the issue of financial
liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outflow (including
all fees paid, transaction cost, and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. At the time
of initial recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through
statement of profit and loss.

¢. Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services received by the Company prior to the end of reporting
period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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2.11 Revenue recognition
The Company earns revenue from providing domestic satellite communication services to closed user group (CUG)
networks via Satellite System on non-exclusive basis (Bandwidth Services).

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.

Revenue from bandwidth services is provided over the period of time, where it is received and consumed

simultaneously by the customers and accordingly revenue is recognized over the period of performance and in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

2.12 Foreign currency translation
a. Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statement is
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is TNSL’s functional and presentation currency.

b. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of
profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement
of profit and loss on a net basis within other income / other expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.13 Income Tax
The Income tax expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

a. Current Tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.14

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction

other than business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss).

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise these temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax positions are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is
probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Leases

Till March 31, 2019
As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company
as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight- line basis over the period of the lease unless
the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's
expected inflationary cost increases.

With effect from April 1, 2019
As a lessee

From April 1, 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and a corresponding liability at the date at which

the leases asset is available for use by the company. Contracts may contain lease and non-lease component.

The company allocates the consideration in the contract to lease and non-lease component based on their

relative standalone prices.

Assets and liabilities are initially measured on the present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present

value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date.

e amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees.

e the exercise price of purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise the option and

e payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.
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To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting points,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with Risk- free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Company, which doesn’t have recent third party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease e.g. term, security etc

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit and loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising the following;

¢ The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
Any initial direct cost, and

Restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
straight line basis. If the company is reasonably certain to exercise purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all the leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis in profit and loss. Short term leases are leases with a term of lease term of 12 months or
less.

2.15 Borrowing

Borrowing are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is breach of a material provision
of a long-term loan agreement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability
becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.
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2.16 Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities
a. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditure arising from the restructuring,
which are both necessary entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the
Company.

b. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle, or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made.

c. Contingent Assets
A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.18 Segment reporting
The board of directors assesses performance of the Company as Chief Operating Decision Maker.
The Company has identified one reportable segment "Network System" based on information reviewed by
CODM. Refer Note No. 39 for segment information presented.

2.19 Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity asa deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.20 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
g adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
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Tatanet Services Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
Note 4(b) : Right of use assets and lease liability

The Company has taken premises on lease along with certain equipment for term of five years. The Company is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets,

a. Right of use assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Description L hold premises & equip
Cost
Balance as on April 1, 2019 due to adoption of Ind AS 116 [refer note 32) 584
Additions during the year 57
Balance as at March 31, 2020 641
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as on April 1, 2019 due to adoption of Ind AS 116 (refer note 32)
Depreciation for the year 122
@e as at March 31, 2020 148
Net carrying amount As at March 31, 2020 519
b. Lease liability
Description Leasehold premises & equipment
Balance as on April 1, 2019 due to adoption of Ind AS 116 (refer note 32)
Current 101
Non current 483
584
Additions during the year 57
Accrued finance cost for the year 56
Payment for the year (146)
Balance as al March 31, 2020 551
Current 105
Non current 446
¢. Amount recognised in Statement of profit or loss
Amount recognised in Statement of profit or loss Year ended
March 31, 2020
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 122
Interest on lease liabilities 56
Expenses related to short term leases 7
d. Amount recognised in statement of cash flows
Amount recognised in statement of cash flows For the year ended March 31, 2020
Total cash outflow of leases (146)




Tatanet Services Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 5: Investments - Non current

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Numbers Amount Numbers A

Investment in equity instruments {unguoted, fully paid, carried at FvacCi)
Equity shares in Zoroastrian Co-operative Bank Limited 2,000 5 2,000 5
Total equity instruments 5 5
Total investments 5 5
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 5 5
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments ¥ =
Note 6: Deferred tax assets (net)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables 16 7
Disallowance under Section 40(a}(ia) of the Income Tax Act 1961 31 14
Property plant and equipment and intangible assets, lease assets 28 51
Expenditure incurred on proposed merger and amalgamation u/s 35 DO of the Income Tax Act 1961 1 1
Disallowance of forex gain/loss 1

Lease liability 138 -
Total 215 73

Deferred tax liability
Right of use assets 129
Disallowance of unrealised forex gain

2
129 2
Total 86 71
Deferred tax is recognised at 25.17 % (previous year at 27.82 % ) which is the applicable corporate tax rate substantially enacted as at year end.
Movement in deferred tax assets/ ( Deferred Tax Liability)
Particulars Allowance for | Disallowance Property Expenditure | Disallowance of | Lease liability Right of use Total
[doubtful debts{ under section | Plant and incurred on | unrealised forex assets
trade 40(a)(ia) of | Equipment proposed gain
receivables | The Income and merger and
Tax Act, 1961 | Intangible | amalgamation
Assets ufs 35 DD
At April 1, 2018 11 7 as . - - - 62
(Charged)/credited to statement of profit and loss (4) 7 7 5 (2) - - 9
At March 31, 2019 7 14 51 i (2)] - - 7
(Charged)/credited to statement of profit and loss 9 17 {23) - 3 138 (129)] 15
At March 31, 2020 16 31 28 1 1 138 (129)] 86




Tatanet Services Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 7: Income tax assets (net)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Opening balance 816 821
Add : Tax deducted at source and advance tax
(net of provision for tax of Rs. 595 lakhs (March 2019, Rs. 381 lakhs) 588 576
Less: Income tax refund - 387
Less: Current tax payable for the year 214 194
|Closing Balance 1,190 816

Note 8 : Other non current assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Prepaid expenses 15 S
Total 15 5

Note 9: Trade receivables

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Trade receivables from contract with customers 3,626 2,460
Trade receivables from contract with customers- related party (refer note no 38) - 1
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) (66) (24)
Total 3,560 2,437
Break-up of security details
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Trade receivables considered good — Secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 3,626 2,461
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total 3,626 2,461
Allowance for doubtful debts (Expected credit loss allowance) (66) (24)
Total 3,560 2,437
Note:

1. Trade receivables are dues in respect of services rendered in the normal course of business.
2. The Normal credit period allowed by the Company ranges from 0 to 30 days

3. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a
detailed analysis of trade receivables,

4. There are no dues by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person
or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

Note 10: Cash and cash equivalents

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Balances with banks
- in current accounts 680 240
(b) Cheques on hand 70 43
Total 750 283




Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statement:

Note 11 : Loans - Current

s for the year ended March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Security deposits 75 53
Total 75 53
Break-up of security details
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Loans cansidered good - Secured - =
Loans considered good - Unsecured 75 53
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk .
Loans — credit impaired - -
Total 75 53
Less : Loss allowance = =
Total 75 53
Note 12 (a) : Other financial assets - Non-current
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Other bank balances in earmarked accounts
Balances held as margin money against bank guarantees 17 16
Total 17 16
Note 12 (b) : Other financial assets - Current
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

Unbilled revenue

374 252
Accrued interest 1 -
Fair value of foreign exchange forward contract 8 -
Total 383 252
Note 13 : Contract liabilities- current
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advances received from customers 1,000 655
Deferred revenue 1,668 1,212
Total 2,668 1,867
Note:

1. Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current period relates to a carried forward contract liabilities

and how much relates to performance obligation satisfied in prior year.

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Satellite communication services

of the period

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liability balance at the beginning

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods

1,829

Note 14 : Other current assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Prepaid expenses 30 28
Advance to suppliers - 1
Balance with government authorities (refer note 41) 341 150
Total 371 179

A
o 012754N

S Murnbal




Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 15 :Equity share capital

Particulars

As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of Shares No. of Shares Amount Amount

(In lakhs) (In lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Authorised:-
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 50 50 500 500
Total 50 50 500 500
Issued, subscribed & paid up:-
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 49 49 490 490
Total 49 49 490 490
Notes:
(i) Movement in equity share capital

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

(In Lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
As at April 1, 2018 49 490
Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2019 49 490
Shares issued during the year - 5
As at March 31, 2020 49 490
(ii) Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and associates
Particulars A at Shge

March 31, 2020 31,2019
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(In Lakhs) _(Inlakhs) | (Rs.inlakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs) |
Nelco Limited - Holding company (100% share holding) 49 490 49 490

(iii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs,10 /- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution of dividend
by the shareholders.

(iv) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company :

and proceeds on liquidation will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

A ch 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2019
Name of the shareholder Number of shares Amount I"Number of shares Amount
(In Lakhs) (In Lakhs) (In Lakhs) (In Lakhs)
Nelco Limited - Holding Company (100% share holding) 49 490 49 490

(v) There are no shares bought back or allotted either as fully paid up by way of bonus shares or allotted under any contract without payment received in

cash during 5 years immediately preceding March 30, 2020.




Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 16 : Reserve and surplus

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Retained earnings - refer (i) below 1,561 997
Total 1,561 997
(i) Retained earnings
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars At A

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Opening balance

997 529
Net profit for the year 564 468
Closing balance 1,561 997
Note 16 (a) : Other reserve - Reserve for FVOCI equity instrument

(Rs. in Lakhs)
" As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Opening balance 1 1
Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments * g
Closing balance 1

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the company.

Retained earnings

The same reflects surplus/ (deficit) after taxes in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amount that can be distributed by the
Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the balance in this reserve and also considering the

requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

Reserve for FVOCI equity Instruments

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to retained earning when those assets have been disposed off.




Tatanet Services Limited
Netes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 17: Borrowings

[8) Non current
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 20

Secured

(i) Lang term loans fram banks 141 282

Total 141 282

Notes

The terms of repayment of loans are stated below: (Rs. in Lakhs)

h at Asat Terms of Repayment | Rate of | Nature of Security

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Interest
ICICI Bank Ltd 141 282 Repayable in MCILR 1 year [Exclusive charge over the assets,
Quarterly equal *1.30%  |financed by rupee term loan,
instalments till
March, 2022
(b) Current
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Secured

(i} Term loans from banks - 51

{ii) Bank overdraft 224 B

{iif) Buyers credit 158 -

382 51

Unsecured

(i) Term loans from banks 300/ J

{ii} Loan from holding company 568 496

888 496

Total 1,270 547

Notes:

The Term loans from banks are repayable on demand. Repayment schedule is a5 foliows : (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at Terms of Repayment Rate of Nature of Security
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Interest (p.a}

The Zoraastrian Co-op Bank Limited . 51 | Ondemand Bank base rate (Hypothacation by way of first charge
on the equipment’s to be purchased
out of the Bank’s Term Loan,

Bank Overdraft - Axis Bank 224 ©On demand 3'Months  [1) First charge over current assets of

MCLR +1.70% (the Company,
2} First charge over fixed assets of the
company (excluding the assets funded
by Zoroastrian Bank) and negative lien
on commercial VSAT license.
3) Corporate Guarantee of Melco Ltd

Buyers credit - Axis Bank 158 = | 6 months 2.75% 1} First charge over current assets of
the Company.

2] First charge over fixed assets of the
company (excluding the assets funded
by Zoroastrian Bank) and negative lien
on commercial VSAT license
3) Corporate Guarantee of Neleo Ltd,
Term loan from ICIC 300 = | Ondemand MCLR 1 years |Unsecured
1.30%

Loan from helding company 588 496 | On demand 11.50% Unsecured

The carrying amount of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings {refer note 31)

Nat debt reconciliation {Rs_In Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Cash & cash equivalents 750 283

Bank overdraft (224) -

Current borrowings (1,081) (5a7)

Non current borrowings {including current (282) a23)

maturities of long term debt)

Lease liability {551}/ -

Net debts (1,358) (687)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
|Particulars Other assets from financial activities Total
Cash & Bank Current borrowings Non current Lease
overdrafts borrowings (including |  obligation
current maturities
of long term debt)

Net debt as at March 31, 2018 218 (841) (385) - {1.008)

Cash flow 65 294 (38} - i

interest axpenses ! 66 48 - 114

interest Paid - (66) (48} 5 (114)

(Net debt as at March 31, 2019 283 (547) (423) - (687)

Recognised on adoption of Ind AS 116 (584) (584)

(refer note 32) + . L

Net debt as at April 1, 2019 (restated) 283 {547} (423) (584) 11,271)

Acquistion -leases B . ; (57) (s7)

Cash flow 243 (a99) 141 20 (25)

Interest expenses (35) (82) (37) (56), (210)

interest paid 35 7”7 37 56 205

Net debt as at March 31, 2020 526 (1,051) (282) (551)) (1,358)]




Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 18 : Trade payables - Current

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Trade payables:

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 40)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

850 797

Trade payables to related parties (refer note 38) 1,539 996

Total 2,389 1,793
Note 19 : Other financial liabilities - Current

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts
Current maturities of long term debt

141 141
Interest accrued 53 -
Capital creditors 1,182 376
Total 1,376 517
*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the company.
Note 20 : Other current liabilities
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Statutory dues payable 419 101
Total 419 101




Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 21 : Revenue from operations

Other gains and losses
Foreign exchange gain (net)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rendering of services

- Satellite communication services 11,598 9,825

- Internet services 12 2

- Sale of goods 6 &

- Other service income 1 -
Total 11,617 9,827
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Contract price 11,617 9,827
Adjustments for:
Contract liabilities - -
Total 11,617 9,827
Note 22 : Other income
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest income:
= On bank deposits 1 |
- Onincome tax refund - 33
1 34
Others
Deposits / Advances from customers written back - 37
- 37

36 =
Mark to market gain on derivatives 8 @
44
Total 45 71




Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 23 : Operating expenses

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
License fees to D.0.T (as revenue share) 1,403 1,188
Transponder charges 4,241 3,469
Connectivity charges 101 153
ISP monitoring & support charges 9 -
Network management fees 1,887 1,507
Marketing services fees 1,947 1,850
Total 9,588 8,167
Note 24 ; Finance costs
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Interest on
(i) Borrowings 141 114
(ii) Leased liabilities 56 =
(iii) Others 61 26
(b) Guarantee commission to Holding Company 15 17
(c) Bank charges 40 28
Total 313 185
Note 25 : Depreciation and amortisation expense
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
On property, plant and equipment (refer note 4(a)) 420 378
On intangible assets (refer note 4(a)) 56 51
On right-of-use assets (refer note 4(b)) 122 -
Total 598 429
Note 26 - Other expenses
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Power and fuel 17 19
Rent [refer note 4(b)] 7 117
Repairs to machinery 164 168
Repairs to others 11 -
Insurance 2 2
Professional & legal charges (7) 22
Provision for doubtful debts (written back) 42 (17)
Bad debts written off 9 6
Foreign exchange loss - 12
Directors sitting fees 4 4
Auditors remuneration (refer note below) 18 18
Sales commission 83 83
Other expenses 45 30
Total 395 464
Note : Auditors remuneration (excluding Goods and Service Tax)
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Payments to the auditors comprises
- Audit Fee 9 b
- Tax audit fee 1 3
- Certification and other fee 8 11
- For reimbursement of expenses * i
Total 18 18

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the Company.




Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 27 : Fair Value Measurements

Financial instrument by category.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at

As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

FVPL FvocCi Amortised cost FVPL Fvoc Amortised Cost
Financial assets
Investments - 5 - - 5 -
Trade receivable 3,560 - g 2,437
Cash and cash equivalents - 750 - 283
Other bank balances - - 17 - - 16
Loans (Security deposit) 75 - 53
Unbilled revenue - 374 - 252
Mark to market derivative assets 8 . -
Other financial assets - - 1 - - -
Total financial assets 8 5 4,777 5 3,041
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities of
long term debt) - 1,552 970
Trade payables - 2,389 - 1,793
Capital creditors - 1,182 » - 376
Interest accrued 5 53 - >
Total financial liabilities . - 5,176 5 - 3,139

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

(1) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and messured fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining

fair value, the company has classified its financial inst

ruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard, An explanation of each level follows underneath

the table.

Financial assets and labilities measured at fair value- recurring fair value Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

|measurement at March 31, 2020

Financial assets

Financial instrument at FVOCI

Investment in equity shares 5 5 5

Financial instrument at FvpL

Mark to market derivative assets 12(b) o #

Total financial assets = 8 5 13
(Rs in Lakhs)

Financial assets and labilities measured at amortised <ost for which fair values are Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

disclosed at March 31, 2020

Financial assets

Other bank balances 12(a) - 17 17

Total financial assets - - 17 17

Financial liabilities

Borrowings (including current maturities of long term debts) 17 & 19 1,552 1,552

Total financial liabilities . - 1,552 1,552
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Financial assets and labilities measured at fair value- recurring fair value Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

measurement at March 31,2019

Financial assets

Financial instrument at Fvoci

Investment in equity shares 5 ] 5 5

Total Financial assets B . 5 5

Financial assets and labiliti d at ised cost for which fair values are Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

|disclosed at March 31, 2019

Financial Assets

Other bank balance 12(a) 16 16

Total Financial Assets - - 16 16

Financial liabilities

Borrowings ( including current maturities of long term debts) 17 & 19 970 970

Total Financial liabilities - - 970 970













Tatanet Services Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Except for those financial assets/liabilities mentioned in the above table, the Company considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets / liabilities recognised in the
financial statements approximate their fair values, due to their short term nature. For financial assets that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the
fair values.

Level 1- Level 1 Hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted price. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds, mutual funds that have quoted
price,

Level - 2 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technique which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity - specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level -3 If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is include in level 3.

(i) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
a) Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments include:
- The use of quoted market price or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
- The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
b) During the current year, there is no significant movement in the items of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
¢} The Fair value for investment in unquoted equity share were calculated based on risk adjusted discounted rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.
d) The fair value of borrowings were calculated based on discounted cash flow using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy
due to inclusion of unobservable inputs including own credit risk.
(iii) Valuation processes
The finance department of the Company performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purpases, including level 3 fair values
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the Management and the finance team at least once every three months, in line with the company's
reporting periods.
{iv) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Aaat e
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Carrying Amounts Fair Value Carrying Amounts_ Fair Value

Financial assets
Other bank balances 17 17 16 16
Total financial assets 17 17 16 16
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities of long term debt) 1,552 1,552 870 870
Total financial liabilities 1,552 1,552 970 970

Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The company uses its judgement to select a variety of
methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and the
impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii) and (iii) above.




Tatanet Services Limited
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Note 28 : Financial Risk Management

The company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manage the risk

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Ageing analysis, credit ratings Diversification of bank deposit, credit limits
receivables, Loans, financial assets

measured at amortised cost.

Liguidity risk Borrowings, Trade Payables and other Rolling cash flow forecast Availability of bank credit lines and borrowing
Financial liabilities facilities

Market risk - foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and liabilities |Rolling cash flow forecast Monitoring Foreign currency fluctuation,
not denominated in Indian rupees (INR} |Sensitivity analysis Availing Forward Contracts.

Market risk -interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates  [Sensitivity analysis Availability of borrowing facilities at fixed rate,

Periodic monitoring of variable interest rates

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss, The company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), deposits with bank and financial institution, Loans and deposits with third party, Foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments / assets.

The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. it considers reasonable and supportive forward looking information such as: adverse changes in business, changes in the operating results
of the counterparty, change to the counterparty's ability to meet its obligations etc. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

(i} Credit risk management

Financial assets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and Security deposits with counterparties. Individual risk limits are set for each
counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the Company.

The Company's maximum expasure to credit risk as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is the carrying value of each class of financial assets as disclosed in the financial
statements.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has been managed by the Company through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On
account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix and forward-
looking information and an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the financial asset to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables.

Three customers each as at March 31, 2020 and three customers as at March 31, 2019 individually contributed to more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables.
Receivable (Gross) from these customers was Rs. 1,031 Lakhs and Rs. 1,034 Lakhs as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 respectively.
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The amount of Trade receivable outstanding as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is as follows:

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Not Due 0-180 days 181 - 365 days More than 365 days Total
As at March 31, 2020 2,528 853 124 121 3,626
As at March 31, 2019 358 1,986 117 = 2,461

(ii) Reconciliation of loss allowances provision - Trade receivable

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Loss allowances as at April 1, 2018

40
Changes in loss allowances (16)
Loss es as at March 31, 2019 24
Changes in loss allowances 42
Loss allowances as at March 31, 2020 66

During the year the company has written off trade receivable amounting to Rs. 9 Lakhs (March 2019 Rs. 6 Lakhs). The company does not expect to receive future cashflow or
recoveries from collection of cashflows previously written off.

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due through rolling cash flow forecast. Also, the Company has unutilized credit limits with banks.

(i) Financing arrangements

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
Floating rate

Expiring within one year (Bank overdraft, Term Loans and other facilities) 1,589 2,204
Total 1,589 2,204

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non derivative financial liabilities.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Derivative (Net Settled)
Foreign exchange forward contract
Total derivative liabilities

*

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 Year and Above Total
March 31, 2020
Non - Derivative
Borrowings (including current maturities) 1,411 141 = 1,552
Lease liability 105 119 327 551
Trade payables 2,389 - - 2,389
Other financial liabilities 1,182 - 1,182
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 53 - - 53
Total Non derivative liabilities 5,140 260 327 5,727
Derivative (Net Settled)
Foreign exchange forward contract - - - = |
Total derivative liabilities - - - -
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 Year and Above Total
March 31, 2019
Non - Derivative
Borrowings (including current maturities) 688 141 141 970
Trade payables 1,793 . % 1,793
Other financial liabilities 376 - - 376
Total Non derivative liabilities 2,857 141 141 3,139

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the company.
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(C) Mmarket Risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from direct transactions in foreign currency and also indirectly through transactions denominated in foreign currency

though settled in functional currency (INR), primarily with respect to the US Dollar (USD). Foreign currency risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company's functional currency (INR).
The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows

(Rs. in Lakhs})
|Particulars Foreign Currency As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
In foreign currency Rs in Lakhs In foreign currency Rs in Lakhs

Financial liabilities

Trade payables and capex creditors usp 4 278 5 373
Buyers credit use i 158 - -
Derivative liabilities

Buy foreign currency usp (2} (169) 8 *
Net exposure to foreign currency liabilities usp 4 267 5 73
Financial assets

Trade receivables usp (11) (860) * 9
Net exposure to foreign currency assets usD [ (11)] (860)] - 9

*figures are below rounding off norm adopted by the company.

(b) Sensitivity

The Sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Impact on profit after tax
Particulars As at Asat
| March 31,2019 |
USD sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 5% (March 31, 2019 - 5%)* (42) (13)
INR/USD - Decrease by 5% (March 31, 2019 - 5%)* 42 13

* Holding all other variables constant
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(ii) Cash Flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at Asat

March 31,2020 | March31.2019 |
Variable rate borrowings 1,552 970
Fixed rate borrowings = o
Total borrowings 1,552 970
(b) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates

Rs. in Lakhs)
Impact on profit after tax
Particulars Az at Azt
_March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 |
Interest Rate - Increase by 100 basis points* (12) 7
Interest Rate - Decrease by 100 basis points* 12 7

* Holding all other variables constant

(iii) Price Risk
The company does not have any financial instrument which is exposed to change in price

Note 29 : Capital Management

Risk Management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to

- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Loan covenants
Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the company is required to comply with the following financial covenants:

Ratio of Total Outside Liabilities (TOL) to Total Net worth (TNW) should be less than 4 as on March 31, 2020 and as on March 31, 2018
The company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period, As at March 31, 2020 the ratio of TOL to TNW was 3.63 (March 2019: 2.62}
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Note 30 : Offsetting Financial Assets And Financial Liabilities
There are no financial assets and liabilities which are eligible for offset under any arrangement

Collateral against borrowings
Current Assets and Fixed Assets of the Company are pledged as security against debt facilities from the lender. For carrying amount of assets pledged as security refer note 31.

Note 31 : Assets Pledge As Security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are :

{Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Notes Ava A
| March 31,2019 |
Current assets
First charge
Trade receivables 9 3,560 2,437
Cash & cash equivalents 10| 750 283
Loans 11 75 53
Other Financial Assets 12(b) 383 252
Other current assets 14 371 179
Total current assets pleaded as security 5,139 3,204
Non current assets
First charge
Other Financial assets 12(a) 17 16
Fixed assets
Plant & Machinery 4(a) 3,434 2,015
Office Equipment 4(a) 2 6
Intangible Assets 4(a) 178 163
Capital Work in Progress 4{a) 281 294
Total Non current assets pledged as security 3,912 2,494
Total assets pledged as security 9,051 5,698 |
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Note 32: Changes in accounting pelicies

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified in March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.The
Company has applied Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ {Ind AS 116) with a date of initial application of April 1, 2019 using modified retrospective approach, under which the
cumulative effect of initial application is recognized as at April 1, 2019.

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under the

principles of Ind AS 17, Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1st April 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate was 9.95%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the entity recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability immediately before transition as
the carrying amount of the Right of use assets and the lease liability.

i. Practical expedient applied

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 only to the contracts that were previously identified as leases. As a practical expedient, contracts previously identified as
lease under ind AS 17 has not been reassessed as to whether a contract is, or contains, a lease under Ind AS 116.

The Company has used the following practical expedients when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17:
-Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics

-Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use asset and liabilities for leases with remaining lease term of 12 months or less.

-Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of application

-Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

ii. Measurement of lease liabilities

Particulars Rs. in Lakhs)

Operating lease commitments as at March 31, 2019 31
Add: Adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension 584
option

Less : Short-term leases recognised on a straight -line basis as (31
expenses

Lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 584
Current 10
Non Current 483

iii. Measurement of right-of-use assets
The assaciated right-of-use assets for property leases measured on modified retrospective basis.

iv. Adjustment recognised in the balance sheet on April 1, 2019
The change in accounting policy has affected the following items in the balance sheet on April 1, 2019

- Right-of-used assets- increase by Rs. 583 lakhs
- Deferred tax assets- increase by Rs. 147 lakhs
- Deferred tax liability- increase by Rs. 147 lakhs
- Lease liabilities- increase by Rs. Rs 583 lakhs
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Note 33 : Earnings per share (EPS)

Sr. Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a. |Weighted Average Number of Shares at the beginning and end of the Year 49,00,000 49,00,000
(Nos.)
b. |Net Profit after tax available for Equity Share holders (Rs in Lakhs) 564 468
¢. |Basic and diluted earnings Per Share (Rs) 11.51 9.54
Note 34 : Contingent liabilities:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr. Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a. |Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt comprises of:
i) Sales Tax claims disputed by the company relating to issues of applicability 3,836 3,836
and classification
ii) Claims from Vendor 168 168
Future cash outflows in respect of above matters are determinable only on
receipt of judgments/ decisions pending at various forums / authorities
4,004 4,004
Note 35 : Capital and other commitments
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr. Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a. |Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account 267 279
and not provided for (net of advances paid)
b. |Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on other account 4 13

and not provided for (net of advances paid)
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Note 36: - Current and deferred tax
(a) Statement of profit and loss
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year 214 194
Total current tax expense 214 194
Deferred tax
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (15) (9
Total deferred tax expenses / (benefit) (15) (9)
Income tax expense 199 185
{b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rates:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 |
Profit before tax 763 - 653
Statutory tax rate (%)* 25.17% 27.82%|
Tax at Indian tax rate 192 182
On account of disallowance of interest on TDS " 3
Provision not allowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 1
Change in income tax rate 6
Total tax expense 199 185
*A new Section 115BAA has been insterted in the Income Tax Act 1961 with effect from financial year 2019-2020. Section
115BAA allows every domestic company an option to pay income tax at the rate of 22 % (effective tax rate is 25.17% including
surcharge and cess) subject to certain specified conditions. Accordingly, in the current year, the company has availed
concessional tax rate under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act 1961 and made provision for income tax in the financial
statement.
(c} No aggregate amounts of current and deferred tax have arisen in the reporting periods which have not been recognised in
statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income but directly debited/ (credited) to equity.
Note 37 : Non cancellable operating lease payables
The Company has taken premises on lease along with certain equipments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
five years. From April 1, 2019 the Company has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, see note 4(b) and note 32 for
further information.
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr. Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:
a.  |Within one year * 31
b. Later than one year but not later than five years -
c Later than five years 2 :

a1
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Note 38 : Related party transactions

The disclosure pertaining to the related party transactions as required by Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosure", as applicable to the company are
indicated below:

Promoter of ultimate holding company
Tata Sons Limited, India

Ultimate holding company
The Tata Power Company Limited, India
Holding Company :
The Company is controlled by the following entity
Name Nature of Relationship Place of incorporation Qwnership Interest
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Nelco Limited Immediate parent entity India 100% 100%
Directors of the company
(i)} Key managerial personnel
Mr. P.J. Nath - Managing Director of Nelco Limited
(i) Independent and non-executive directors
Mr. R.R Bhinge (Non- Executive Director)
Mr. P.J. Nath (Non Executive Director)
Mr. Sanjay Dube (Non- Executive Director upto July 20, 2018)
Ms. Hema Hattangady (Independent Director upto 27 January 2020)
Mr. Jitendra Vardhaman Patil (Non- Executive Director w.e.f. lanuary 24, 2019)
Mr. Ajay Kumar Panday (Independent Director w.e.f. 28 January 2020)
Transactions with Directors of the company
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(i) Non Executive and Independent Director
Directors sitting fees 4 a
Total i 4 4
Details of transactions between the Company and other related parties are disclosed below
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Pactiagees Nelco Limited T Tt Hwa CRTpAT Tata Sons Limited
Limited, India
r—— ) (Uit holding (Promoter of Holding
h = company) ___Company) =
Services Received by the company 3,864
(3,374) =
Services provided by the company - 1
- 1)
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment 849 .
Interest on Loans taken 50 <
(57)
Loans received during the year 1,474 - =
(848
Loans repaid during the year 1,381
(1,072)
Reimbursements received 144
(240}
Royalty charges =
(15)
Guarantees and collaterals received s
{2,125)
Guarantees and collaterals refunded 800 - ]
() () ()
Balances outstanding as on March 31, 2020 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Paiticulars Nelco Limited Theixis .Power c?umv Tata Sons Limited
Limited, India
{Ultimate holding Promoter of ultimate
Holding company
company) holding company |
Creditors (Net) 1,539 . -
(981) = (15)
Capex creditors 1,001 &
Debtors - N
(1)
Loans 588
(a96)
Accrued interest 5
|Guarantees and collaterals cutstanding 5,950
(6,750)

h 5 t P allyyear ended March 31, 201¢
o Chartereq
&) ACC 0

TLPINAAG - 5077

Npias 000
12754NINS

< :
* Mumbai
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Note 39: Segment Information

Description of segments and principal activities

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
("CODM") of the company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board of Directors. The company has identified one reportable segment “Network System" based on the
information reviewed by CODM. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets, total carrying

amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of charge for depreciation during the year is as
reflected in the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020.

One external customers as at March 31, 2020 and two external customers as at March 31, 2019 contributed to more than 10% of the total

revenue. Revenue from these customers Rs 1,348 Lakhs and Rs 2,297 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019
respectively. These revenues are attributed to the network system segment.

Note 40: Disclosure required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the Act)

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding as at March 31, 2020. This information

as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined on the basis of
information available with the company.

Note 41 : As a part of transition to Goods Services Tax (GST) in June 2017, the Company carried forward the Cenvat/Service tax/Sales tax
input credit balance for future set-off against GST payable aggregating to Rs. 85 Lakhs. However, due to technical glitch on the GSTN portal,
the Company could not file the Tran 1 Form within the prescribed period including the extended filing period. The Company filed a writ
petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay for allowing the carry forward of the input credit balances. In view of the multiple judgements
by various High Courts in India on this matter which supports the Company’s claim and based on the advice received from independent
legal counsel, the Company expects to recover this input credit balance. The Company will be filing Special Leave Petition in Hon'ble
Supreme Court as soon as the lockdown is over and the Supreme Court commences admitting of the petitions. In view of this, no provision
has been made in the books of account against the recoverability of these balances.

Note 42 : The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has profoundly impacted the economies across the Globe including India. In
order to contain the spread of COVID-19, the Central Government of India as well as the various State Governments ordered complete lock-
down including restrictions on domestic and international travels. During this period the Company continued to provide Satellite
Communication Services as it is considered as an essential service being part of “Telecommunication, Internet Services, Broadcasting and
cable services”, with relevant permissions from the relevant authorities.

The Company continues to monitor the impact of the global pandemic in future and it may be different from the estimates made as on the
date of financial statements. Based on the information available on the date of approval of these financial statements, the management has
evaluated the impact of the aforesaid situation on the business of the Company, financial risks including credit risks and liquidity risks.
Considering that the Company's revenue consists of recurring bandwidth services, liquidity position at year end and available approved
credit limits, the management is of the opinion that there is no material uncertainty on the Company'’s ability to do business as a going
concern and there are no impairment indicators for any of the asset disclosed in the financial statements.
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Note 43 : Amalgamation

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 01, 2017 had approved the draft composite Scheme of
Arrangement and Amalgamation amongst the Company, Nelco Limited (Holding Company), and Nelco Network Products Limited (Wholly
owned subsidiary of Holding Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“ The Scheme”), Upon approval of the scheme by
regulatory authorities, the Company will stand merged and amalgamated on a going concern basis with Nelco Limited (" Transferee
Company") w.e.f April 01, 2017 (‘the appointed date') in terms of the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.

During the year the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT") approved the Scheme on November 2, 2018, As per the NCLT Order, the
Company intimated the Registrar of the Companies ("RoC”) about the approval of the Scheme by NCLT, stating that Department of
Telecommunications (“DoT") approval has not received. The RoC records were, however, updated to reflect the Scheme as effective and
Company as “amalgamated” with the Nelco Limited. Based on legal advice, the Company has approached NCLT to direct the RoC to amend
their records to reinstate Company to its earlier status and cancel the effect of the Scheme with immediate effect The decision of NCLT is

awaited. Pending necessary approvals, the scheme has not been given effect to in the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2020.
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